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A Note From The Author

On The 2nd Anniversary of Her Stroke

Writing this novel, about these fictional tales
of love, disappointment and glorious fulfillment, has
been a miraculous experience for me. Two years ago,
on March 8, 2011, I was cut down by a stroke. It
turned out not to be the end of life but a new
beginning. The stroke hindered my body from
standing or walking, but it seemed to enhance my
imagination and my creativity. Today, on the second
anniversary of my stroke, I am celebrating the birth
and success of my first novel, Romantic Tales of Old
Mulvedania. After a lifetime of writing poems, short
stories, and plays, I found with the help of my
wonderful caregivers, who typed my novel from my
dictation, that there is a new world for me in writing
imaginative literature.

Now, as I approach my 93rd birthday on
March 25th, I live with my newfound fictional friends
and my life is greatly enriched. I love the imagined
characters in my first fully realized novel. Now, I am
writing a second novel, The Carolinian Chronicles,
about the French aristocracy in modern day France,
and I love the beautiful people who fill the pages of
this “next” novel too. All of these imagined people are
my dear friends. Not one of these characters is
intended to bare any resemblance or connection to
real people. They are all the creation of my
imagination and they are all very dear to me because
they have illuminated my life. And I hope they will
illuminate the lives of all who read my novels too!

This is escape literature. The fictional
characters play their roles in front of a backdrop of
real people and real factual historical events. I have
tried very hard to make sure the historic facts are
accurate. Each scene is written with love-at-heart. In
my fictional pages there is no lasting meanness.
Tolerance and forgiveness illuminate even the pages
that deal with darkness. Basically these are sun-lit
pages refreshing to the human spirit and dedicated to
the goodness within all people.



For example, in this novel, there is a fantasy
country called Mulvedania, which was founded by
Danes hundreds of years ago in central Europe.
Mulvedania has its own royal family, albeit a fantasy
royal family, that is related to the real royal families of
Europe. The fictional Mulvedanian young couple,
Prince Charles and Crown Princess Victoria Eugenie,
have an intimate visit with the real British King George
VI and his lovely Queen Elizabeth. This fictional but
memorable meeting brought comfort and closeness to
all involved, a few minutes of peace and affection
before raw reality closed in, as World War II looms.
This is an instance when our fictional young couple
met with their Royal cousins in a memorable visit.
Another instance was in Denmark when the real great
King Christian X visited the fictional Princess Royale of
Mulvedania, Sophia Dagmar, on her deathbed.

My imagined heroine Sophia Dagmar was
often called the most beautiful Royal in Europe. She
was very tall, crowned with a fabulous head of golden
hair, and she was a true Viking Princess. But Sophia
Dagmar remained a maiden lady until the end of her
long life. More important to her than marriage was to
be the most renowned financier in Europe, heading up
the Banque de l'Entreprise de Mulvedania. After the
death of her brother, the fictional King Hector VI, she
continued her influential role in the affairs of
Mulvedania and was considered one of the world's
richest women. And so, fictional characters intertwine
with historical figures and Mulvedania takes on a
reality of its own.

So, while we cope with human inadequacy we
also embrace a larger long lasting forgiveness and
fulfillment through our own histories, real and
imagined. It is my dream that this novel, and all my
subsequent novels, bring you joy and fulfillment too.

Lovingly yours,
D.N. Sutton
LaJolla, California, March 8th, 2013

PS. It is my wish that all proceeds of this book are donated to the
SignWriting ASL Wikipedia Project: www.SignWriting.org/donate
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THE
DISCOVERY SUPREME

Chapter I

I am Margo Mara, a contributor to the La
Jolla Sentinel, a newspaper in Southern
California. 1 consider myself pretty well
informed about the world and figure that after
living 57 years I cannot be taken by surprise. I
am pretty sure of myself. Being a successful
entrepreneur and creative type, I figure nothing
will offend me or plunge me into astonishment.
But you never know. Because yesterday I got a
call from the East Coast, from a renowned
magazine editor named Amanda Sherwood. She
said, “I want to track a lady of royal lineage in
your La Jolla neighborhood ... someone out
there on the West Coast. Maybe you could help
me find her?” So, I said, “Sure, Amanda, I
would be glad to, why not?” And that is the
beginning of my story.

So, I promised I would try to track down this
person that Ms. Sherwood hoped to locate. But
frankly I didn’t know how or where to begin.
Where do I find a person of royal lineage? She
is very old, probably in her 90’s, if she is alive
at all; a person who does not want to be found
or identified. A person unique and remarkable I
am sure, living here amongst us and basically
unknown.

My own mother is in her nineties, just a
shadow of what she was once so 1 can
sympathize with the lost lady in question, a lost
lady whose royal lineage she managed to
conceal over a lifetime.
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Over far too many cups of coffee, I started
my quest phoning residences for elderly people,
clubs and businesses, which dealt with the
geriatric set. The quest is interesting because
many intriguing, cultivated people live near or
in San Diego. We just recently mourned the loss
of a relative of the Spanish crown, Alfonso de
Bourbon. He was one of our community’s most
remarkable personalities, a lovely gentleman
who spoke many languages and made every
lady he met feel royal, indeed. I knew there
must be others like him in the community but in
this case I am looking for a woman who could
not be heir to the throne of her own country
because she was not the male heir. What ever
happened to her? Where did she go? What did
she do? Did she move on to an old age or die
young, as most of her contemporaries did? I
kept putting out my feelers, calling different
people I knew. But after one disappointment
after another I started feeling like it was a futile
quest.

My mother, who lives with me (or did I live
with her?), listens to it all with some
amusement. “Really?” she said, “Why don’t you
leave the old gal alone. She knows what she is
doing and why she is doing it. She wanted to
have a full American life, and if she is still alive,
you don’t want to mess it up for her, do you?” I
said “Of course not, I am all for freedom, self
expression, fulfillment, all those good things,
but it is still kind of a fun challenge to see if this
lady, who may be one of the many descendants
of Queen Victoria, is living here in our midst.
And leading a normal life so well hidden away
no one suspects her”. My mother laughed, and
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surprisingly, agreed with me. She said, “It is
kind of crazy, but let me know if I can help”.

I kind of laughed at that because in some
ways | didn’t know a lot about my mother
either. My mother is a person of unique talent.
Up until about the age of 90, she was a well-
known published writer of cookbooks, not
surprising when you consider my Dad is still
running his restaurant “The Epicurean”, which
he started 60 years ago. To this day he greets all
guests who come to dinner on our beautiful
Belvedere Estate as though they were long lost
kin. He keeps an apartment above the restaurant
so he can go to bed early in order to wake up
before dawn to bake his famous breads and
pastries, one of the tenets of his success. Then,
every morning he comes home with an armful
of goodies and my mother’s friends of the
gourmet set gather in the garden on the side of
the house for coffee and conversation. Our
house is never quiet, never lonely, and never
dull. It struck me that there are a lot of old
people around San Diego whose life stories are
incredible and far less confused and configured
than people in my generation today who know it
all and yet feel so cutoff from the inner realities.

My East Coast contact understood my
difficulty and empathized and sympathized.
“Don’t get too grim about it”, she cautioned me.
“Just find the Crown Princess of Mulvedania.”
But Mulvedania is not the same country
anymore! Who would care if Mulvedania has
royalty or not? I was discouraged because I
couldn’t even find the most meager information.
My mother found it kind of amusing that I
would be knocking myself out in pursuit of
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something so distant and lost. But I felt that if
the country ever existed and the woman was one
of the many descendants of Queen Victoria who
populated Western and Northern Europe, 1
should take it very seriously and respectfully
and try to find an answer. I read through some
obscure book, which gave a rough description of
King Hector VII. He was described as a fanatic,
ignoring his daughter and obsessing over his
son, the heir to the throne.

Warwick’s Bookstore Est. 1921

Inevitably when all seemed nothing but
dead-ends, I turned to the two amazing book-
store owners that make La Jolla so memorable,
Nancy Warwick and her much known and
utterly unique competitor, Dennis Wills. If you
lived in La Jolla you would know both these
remarkable people. Nancy inherited Warwick’s
from her family

Her store is an absolute landmark, which
pulsates with the community, a lively adjunct to
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the rich culture of life so much cherished by us
all.  Something 1is always scheduled at
Warwick’s. Readings by current authors fill up a
month’s agenda and present in the tightly
packed aisles are the liveliest members of La
Jolla society. Invariably there is standing room
only when Nancy announces a special evening.
When my mother brings out a new cookbook,
her friends come to share the excitement with
her, Ellen Revelle, Lillian Walker, Harle
Montgomery and others too numerous to
mention, all movers and shakers in a new
century.

D.G. Wills Bookstore, La Jolla

When Dennis Wills of D.G. Wills Books
decides to offer one of his unique evenings, the
event overflows out into the street. The
excitement of having a national celebrity
coming to our town brings out the literati in all
of us, one more memorable evening for us all to
celebrate. But hidden away in Wills’ bookstore
are items rare and forgotten, items obscure and
timeless, items none of us could find anywhere
else no matter how hard we tried. Talking to
Dennis gave me hope and sure enough he found
the lost link to an obscure footnote of history,
the birth and death of the Mulvedanian royalty.
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Tucked away in the archives I found a
description of the Crown Princess and marveled
that she could be overlooked and forgotten so
easily. The royal registry described the princess
as tall and slender, very artistic and sensitive,
that she had a long slender neck and long
beautiful fingers. She was a princess and looked
like a princess. One would think she was a
presence hard to be overlooked, but overlooked
she was. The last mention was at the bottom of
an old notebook, which described how during
the night she fled the North Castle with her
lover, and disappeared from European society.

My mother found this very funny. She said,
“Where do you think she went? What did you
think she did?” But apparently nobody cared
much and nobody bothered to talk about it. And
in a very short time not only was she forgotten
but even the country she was born into seemed
to have vanished from everybody’s awareness.

Obviously I had my work cut out for me.
My mother was a very good cook, and when I
told her about this she was stirring one of her
gourmet recipes with a deft hand. She said, “So
be it, she got out, bravo for her”. I said, “You’re
always on the side of freedom for the ladies,
aren’t you Mom?” and she said, “Yes, yes, yes!”
Then, another phone call from the East Coast
jolted the even tenor of the day. It was another
call from Amanda Sherwood asking me what
have I uncovered. I said, “Well, the country
disappeared and no one cared much about the
Crown Princess and presumably life has gone
on for her wherever she went and whatever she
did.” Amanda said, “Oh, but that’s not good
enough. I want something more specific than
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that.” So I said, “Well, I will keep trying. I will
let you know if I come across anything.”

Then several of us sat down to another of
my mother’s famous dinners. As old as my
mother is, she is still a fantastic cook. So, as we
were eating our golden roast and root vegetables
(thinking about the missing lady and the society
she came from, only to vanish into nowhere
here) the conversation lagged.

Then somebody at the table asked me if my
Dad was still around. I answered, “You bet he
is! At dinnertime he is always at his Restaurant,
The Epicurean. And he is a born host. One of
the things that is still fun about my parents is
that they glow when they are around each other.
I think I am very blessed to have such gifted and
elegant parents who are so obviously so much in
love.” Everyone at the table agreed.

Then I told them that just this morning I had
run across a description of the crown princess...
She has a long slender neck, hair piled high on
her head, long fingernails, and beautiful clothes
she had designed and were made just for her.”
And while we were sitting there, reflecting,
someone said, “You know what, that almost
sounds like you, Victoria! Can you be this
vanished lady?” And without hesitation my
mother said, “Yes!” So the mystery was solved.
Amanda Sherwood was amazed and delighted
and wrote a series of articles that intrigued
women all over the world and I, the only child
of Prince Charles and the Crown Princess
Victoria of Mulvedania, went to bed knowing
that I had made a discovery supreme!



Prince Charles and the Crown Princess Victoria of
Mulvedania, 1946



VICTORIA, HER OWN
LADY IN WAITING
Chapter II

I had no idea when 2010 rolled around, that
it would be the most dramatic time of my life. I
had absolutely no notion of what lay ahead. But
I found out, with cataclysmic speed, that life
was about to change drastically and I’d better be
ready for a tumultuous ride. The first thing that
happened was that because of the economic dip
and near depression in years 2008 to 2010, the
newspaper I worked for, The La Jolla Sentinel,
was about to be sold. It was going to get bolder
and less local and more commercial. In other
words no longer the hometown newspaper I
loved and lived with for the past 15 years. But I
decided this was a fortuitous change because my
parents were old and they needed my attention
and much more important to them, they needed
to have their fabulous life story told. And who
would tell it more warm-heartedly and more
genuinely than I could? And I would! So I faced
that change with good feelings. But the next one
was a shock.

It was 9 o’clock in the morning and who
should be standing in the kitchen of our house
but Dad. He always stayed in his apartment at
the restaurant overnight to arise at dawn to bake
his famous breads and desserts. Dad, who never
came back from the restaurant until 11 AM, was
here at 9 AM. And I looked at him sharply,
suddenly aware of how thin he had gotten and
how frail he seemed. I felt a shiver of fear that
indeed something was very wrong. And it was,
it was wrong and not good at all. He just stood
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there leaning on the counter and acting like he
wanted to say something but couldn’t quite say
it. It was obvious he was unwell.

“Here Dad, sit down.” I said and I brought a
couple of chairs into the kitchen area so we
could sit down side by side. “Tell me what is
happening to you. Are you not feeling well?”
“No,” he said, “I am not well. I am not well at
all.” T said, “Let me get you a cup of water or
coffee, perhaps a bite to eat?” “No no,” he said,
“water would be just fine.” Then I tried to
muster my courage. “Have you been ill and
haven’t told us?” “Yes”, he said, “I had so much
to do to close up the restaurant.” And after
saying that he laughed and said “I closed up a
country once. Victoria and I closed down
Mulvedania. I certainly can close up a restaurant
without undo fuss. But it is hard, Margo,” and
the tears welled up in his eyes. “It’s not easy to
say goodbye to the good life we have here. But I
have an appointment at the hospital for
diagnosis this morning at 11 o’clock. Will you
come with me?” And I said, “Of course, of
course we will go. And what about Mom?”” and
he said, “Don’t tell her. She has been worrying
about me. We will find out what it is first and
then tell her. At 10 o’clock we will leave.” The
idea that I could keep it from Mom was
ludicrous but I agreed we would leave at 10.
And then he went into his bedroom and
sprawled out on his bed.

So that was the week and the way we found
out Dad had, of all things, pernicious anemia.
Not cancer, not heart disease, but pernicious
anemia. And that is a curable condition in 2010.
In 1933 it was a fatal disease and I knew about
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that because my mother Victoria told me how
her friends’ father died of it because they didn’t
know what to do in those days. But nowadays,
with vitamin B12 shots and other medicines, life
continues well for those who have pernicious
anemia. Dad came back from the hospital
several days later clearly on the road back to
health. We were overcome with joy and
thanksgiving that he would be all right.
Imagining life without my father Charles was
impossibly difficult. There is not another man
on earth more patient than my dad. He is a
sweetheart from the word go. And we were all
delighted at the good verdict that had come in.

So what happened next? We sat around,
lolled around, hung around. We hung out
together and watched him get stronger every
day and every week and every month.
Meanwhile, my empty notebooks filled up with
their stories about their lives as Prince and
Princess of a European country called
Mulvedania. So when I sat down to put my
parents’ life story together, I knew what to write
about.

At the same time other changes were
happening. My father Charles’ 60 year old
restaurant, The Epicurean, was no more. None
of Charles’ loyal compatriots were alive to take
it over, to Charles’ sorrow. But, he had made
elaborate plans for the continuation of the
Epicurean name and now he was talking to
people who manage food trucks. He would
choose one now which would carry the
Epicurean food lines. This was immensely
important to Charles because he felt that this
way, the Restaurant, the legendary Restaurant,
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would continue. And be in the lives of the
people he knew, and honor the town he loved.
And it would mean an income for the family
even though he could no longer run the
restaurant. And so, after the business
arrangements were concluded and everything
seemed to me to be clean and plain as day and
encouraging for the future, he then told me to
join him and Victoria in the garden to hear the
latest news.

Victoria and Charles on the
Caribbean Island of Antigua

Dad had written to his cousins, the Alfreds,
who amazingly still lived in the South Castle in
Mulvedania. Mulvedania is no longer a
kingdom, but became a democratic European
republic, and is a thriving country. My father
asked the Alfreds if they were going to use
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Sophia’s house on the Caribbean Island of
Antigua. Charles and Victoria wanted to go
there briefly or at length, depending on what
was convenient for the family.

The Alfreds wrote back stating they had no
intentions of going to Antigua so Charles and
Victoria should make their plans. The Alfreds
were glad to say that everyone was doing well
and didn’t need a vacation in Antigua! (Victoria
felt like reminding Charles that the house in
Antigua and every other possession of Sophia’s
belonged to her, but she said nothing. Actually
she thought it was very gracious of Charles to
even think of the Alfreds after all these years.)

When the conversation in the garden seemed
to lapse, I gingerly approached the subject of
how Charles Mara was related to the Alfreds,
who had lived in the South Castle for almost
300 years. And he smiled and said, “Well, my
grandmother was an Alfredian. One day she
caught sight of my grandfather who ran the
kitchens for the King of Mulvedania in
Belvedere (the country’s one big city) and
something magical happened. My Grandfather
Mara had big mustaches and I always thought
he was a scary looking fellow. But not my
grandmother... she thought he was worth giving
up her place in Alfredian society. So she
married him. As an Alfredian, she was always
welcome to come across the moat to enter the
grounds of the South Castle, but not her
husband nor her children. For most of the time
she lived happily in Belvedere and I can tell you
I remember sitting on her lap and her feeding
me milk toast, and singing Alfredian songs to
me, and making my very young life a paradise.
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She was soft and pillowy and I loved my
grandmother. She didn’t seem to be the least bit
intimidated by my grizzly grandfather. She was
a very loving lady and he obviously adored her
and she really seemed to dote on him and on

Grandmother Sonia and Grandfather
Lars Sven Mara

My father continued, “My mother was kind
of round and pillowy too, so I was a very
fortunate, much loved, child. My mother was
the Danish soprano, Marguerite Nielsen, and my
dad, Leo Mara, sang in the same Opera
Company with her. She was 42 years old when I
was born and she gave up grand Opera after that
to do more light opera and musical comedy sort
of stuff. And the interesting thing was that when
my mother sat in the same room as my
grandmother everyone assumed that my
grandmother was her mother. My dad Leo had

14



dark hair like his dad.” I asked my dad how he
fell in love with Victoria, because she is a very
slender person. And he is quick to answer,
“Victoria is special. She is the light of my life.”
That was not a very illuminating comment but it
was clear that that settled that and there was
nothing else to say. The pillowy ladies were his
past and his slender bride is the present. It didn’t
tell me much except that Charles Mara had been
a much loved child and no wonder he turned out
to be such a sweetheart of a man.

Leo Mara

We were all quiet for a minute or two
because the sad fact was that in 1937 all four of
them were gone. My Dad continued, ‘“Marnie,
the Bubble Lady was the first to leave in a tragic
accident. But it was true that in those days not
everyone lived to be old and my grandfather
Mara was the last one to die. He ran the kitchens
for the Kingdom of Mulvedania and taught me
everything I knew about cooking and baking for
very large groups. By the time I was 18 years
old, the King of Mulvedania was calling me,
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Charles Mara, the best pastry chef in Europe. I
did my best to live up to that and all the while
watching how the affairs of the Kingdom were
going down hill and the Germans were getting
ready to invade Poland.”

Margo Mara

But back to the present... I could see how a
trip to Antigua made Victoria so happy because
she had always loved the family house in
Antigua. And it was a joy to think of having
Charles all to herself after all the clutter and
confusing events of their lives. So they packed
themselves up. I managed to pick up some
attractive remnants and Victoria got a lovely
wardrobe together. She had a little dressmaker,
and she had a new sewing lady besides, and
together the three of them designed several
snazzy looking casual outfits. We all matched
up Victoria’s skirts to Charles’s shirts so they
could be a sensational pair frisking around the
beaches and the restaurants at their favorite
Caribbean resort.

And the next thing I, Margo, knew was that

16



they were gone. They had packed up and gone!
And now I was on my own with this new life as
a descendent of Queen Victoria. And now I had
to begin writing this story of my parents, Prince
Charles and Princess Victoria Eugenie. It was
not going to be easy for me.

I could hardly conceive of myself as an
actual descendent of Queen Victoria of England.
I asked myself, “ Am I really number 461 of this
crowd? What kind of nonsense is this to be
royalty in a modern age?” I was really annoyed
that I had to be included in this exclusive group
in an era when royalty should be a nonexistent
form of society. It was hard to absorb because I
had been Maggie, the blue jeaned kid for most
of my life. But okay, it had to be looked at
squarely and tucked away as neatly as possible.

For Victoria, the events of the month of
March 2010 were the most exciting of her
prolonged old age. Think of it, she would have
Charles all to herself. The pleasure of his
company at one of her favorite places on earth
was an unexpected bonanza to add to her very
long life. No one had to remind her that Charles
still had a shock of white hair and his blue eyes
were still blue. She was as much in love with
him now as she had ever been. This was worth
waiting for, this honeymoon in one of her
favorite places on earth. Victoria was waiting,
content to be her own lady-in-waiting.
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MULVEDANIA, THE KINGDOM
IN THE CLOUDS
Chapter 111

The story of Europe, its diverse countries
and tiny duchies, paints a fascinating picture of
many tribes fighting for a foothold and a
permanent place to call their home. Mulvedania
is one of these, a tiny dot of land that time
forgot. Two families stumbled on this mountain
hideaway, claiming it for their own, the Alfreds
and the Hectors. Until this day, Mulvedania can
only be entered from the West. The East is so
mountainous it is almost impassible. The South
belongs to the Alfred clan. They have occupied
the South Castle for almost 300 years. Their
Castle is a true stronghold, with slits for archers,
surrounded by a moat and guarded by a
drawbridge.

The South Castle has been occupied by the
Alfred Clan for almost 300 years.

The Alfred’s may have been a fearsome
opponent to invaders, but mostly they are a
merry lot, a land of blondes and redheads, full
of good cheer, sturdy, and pleasant to everyone.
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Rumor has it they live on top of a gold mine but
no one has ever seen this mine because no one
has ever crossed the bridge into their territory.
The Alfreds feel free to travel widely but no
one, other than their own kin, enters their
enclave.

The other family is the Hectors. At the turn
of the twentieth century King Hector VI and his
sister, Sophia Dagmar, the Princess Royale,
were very popular monarchs. It was said that
Sophia was the most powerful woman in
Europe. She did not have a gold mine to support
her but she ran the Banque de I'Entreprise de
Mulvedania. The Alfreds supplied the Hectors
with gold and Sophia provided the Alfreds with
securities. Sophia seemed to have a sixth sense
as to when the financial markets would boom
and when they would fall. She kept her royal
relatives all across Europe sheltered in her
investments. Mulvedania was a unique place to
be from.

Even today, Mulvedania is entered only
through the western gates, the one flat area in
the center of steep mountains. Mulvedania is
famous for three things: its Polo Field, its
Watchworks and its pastries. Hector VII was
almost insanely proud of all three. He spent
fortunes on his polo ponies. The royal kitchens
under the direction of the Mara family provided
the international polo crowd with extraordinary
food. The fame of the Watchworks brought
steady revenue into Mulvedania and its coffers.
Belvedere was the capital city, the Kingdom’s
only city.

Entering through the city gates, one was
struck by the gleaming beauty of the Royal
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Palace and all its magnificent facilities for
entertaining visitors. It included the Polo Field,
the Royal Kitchens, and the Belvedere Luxury
Hotel with its spectacular dining facilities to
honor its distinguished guests. The Maras lived
close by, in a large sprawling enclave near other
distinguished Mulvedanians including, the head
of the Watchman’s League, Philippe Palmentier.
Further down the road was a part of town where
the working people lived, the people who
sustained the charming little shops that visitors
so much enjoyed.

The Maras were first cousins of the Hectors.
In 1918, the First World War, which was a
terribly bloody war, ended. This war, like many
other wars, completely bypassed Mulvedania,
but it, nevertheless, had its impact on everyone.
1918 was the year that Charles Mara was born.
His mother, the famous Danish soprano
Marguerite Nielsen married fellow opera singer
Leo Mara at the age of 42. She came to
Mulvedania to give birth to her only child,
Charles.

There was much rejoicing. Marguerite
looked very much like Sonia, her Alfredian
mother- in- law, round, soft and blonde. Leo
Mara, the baby’s dad, was tall and dark like his
father and cut a romantic figure on stage.
Marguerite and Leo stayed in Belvedere until
eventually the return to peace made it possible
for them both to rejoin the concert circuit.
Charles’ mother and father were frequently
away performing, while Charles Mara grew up
contentedly in Belvedere, the capital of
Mulvedania much loved by his grandparents.
Charles looked more like an Alfred, a very
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good-natured sturdy little fellow with ruddy
complexion and a calm pleasant attitude.
Europe’s wars seemed always to bypass
Mulvedania, which was too small and much too
inaccessible to be worthy of that much notice.

But that did not mean that time bypassed the
country. It had its full share of drama and
heartache. In 1920, the Crown Princess Victoria
Eugenie, was born, the first child of King
Hector VII. The baby’s mother was the young
Queen Helena Victoria of Schleswig, whose
marriage to Hector VII had been arranged the
year before. The attending doctor was the Royal
Physician and Surgeon, Hector’s drinking pal,
Rupert Jonas. Hector VII did not welcome the
news that young Helena had not produced a
male heir. In fact, he was furious. Hector and his
drinking buddies reacted to the news of the new
princess with total indifference, ignoring the
Queen and the new baby and everything
connected to the birth. Much too soon, only
several months later, the ailing Queen Helena
suffered a miscarriage. But two years after the
birth of Victoria Eugenie, the young Queen
Helena gave birth to the much desired Crown
Prince Hector VIII. The news of the royal heir
was greeted with great excitement. Not only
fireworks were set off but also the newspapers
of the Western World produced tremendous
outpourings of photos in their rotogravure
sections. Hector loved the Western Press.
Pictures of him with the new baby were spread
around the world and Hector was in his glory. If
anyone noticed there were no pictures of Queen
Helena, it was not part of Hector’s concern.
While he and his polo buddies were celebrating,
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the young Queen Helena Victoria lay in the
infirmary near death from the ravages of
childbirth. Three pregnancies in less than two
years, under the questionable care of the Royal
Physician, Rupert Jonas, left Helena’s survival
doubtful. When word got back to Sophia
Dagmar that this beautiful young Queen of
Mulvedania was in dire straits she came down
from the North Castle and demanded that King
Hector and Doctor Jonas meet her in the
infirmary.

Hector came reluctantly to meet with her. It
was a fateful meeting. Until now Sophia had
been the sole financial support of the Kingdom
but when Sophia saw the condition of the Queen
she was beyond fury. She demanded an answer,
saying to him, “This beautiful young woman is
dying before our eyes and what are you going to
do about it?” Hector replied, “Look, it’s the
Queen’s duty to deliver an heir and if she’s not
up to the job, so be it.” To his credit Doctor
Jonas stayed calm, but pointed out that the last
baby was very large and the Queen is a very
small woman. He said, “It’s just one of those
things.” “Yes”, said Sophia, “It is one of those
things. She’s hemorrhaging and what are you
doing to save her life?” “Well”, he said, “I gave
the nurse instructions on packing her up and
nothing more can be done.” “Oh, yes there is”,
said Sophia, “We must call in other medical
opinions.” “Oh, no you don’t”, replied an angry
King Hector, “It’s not the world’s business to
know that the Queen of Mulvedania is such a
poor specimen that she could not even produce
the Crown Prince without making a fuss.”
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Sophia persisted “I demand calling in help for
this dying girl”. Hector replied with no

hesitation, “No, you won’t, you old witch”.

That was the last day that the Kingdom of
Mulvedania received any monies from the
Princess Royale. Hector ordered the two-month
old infant removed from the Queen’s quarters
and so it was slated that Hector VIII would
grow up in the male enclave in the Royal Palace
without ever seeing his mother again. What
happened next was, that without funds from
Sophia, Hector had to turn to the head of the
Watchmaker’s Guild, Philippe Palmetier, for
money. And to this fateful decision, years later,
can be traced the downfall of the Monarchy and
the rise of the Republic.

Sophia sent an urgent S.0.S to the wise old
Alfred Doctor Tomass and he moved in a
surgical team to try to save Helena’s life. The
Alfred’s barricaded the entrance to the Queen’s
apartments, a move hardly necessary since now
that Hector had his heir, he would not
impregnate Helena again. The Alfred medical
team moved in with the latest equipment and
their best surgeon operated to repair the grave
damage to her internal organs, the result of a
botched delivery. He succeeded in making
Helena more comfortable and brought her out of
the danger zone, but the prognosis was not
good. It i1s rumored that Sophia was so furious
that she called the Royal Physician The Butcher
of Belvedere. How this rumor got out, no one
was quite sure, but some months later when
Queen Helena died, there was no question that
Sophia had called Rupert the name that she did.
Sophia saw to it that Helena was buried in the
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Royal Crypt in the Belvedere Cathedral. And
she never spoke to Hector VII again.
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Young Queen Helena Victoria

That is how it happened that the little
Princess Victoria Eugenie came to live in the
North Castle with the Princess Royale. Gussie,
the fourteen-year-old daughter of Matilda,
Sophia’s Lady-in-Waiting, became Victoria’s
Nanny. Growing up in the North Castle was a
wonderful experience because Sophia was so
international and so powerful. A figure in the
finances of Europe, everyone shared in the
excitement of her success. Victoria grew up
speaking Danish and English, of course, the
languages of Mulvedania. And then there was
also French and Russian and through the operas,
Italian. Sophia may not have cared much for
traveling, but she welcomed all comers to her
castle. Many of FEurope’s most interesting
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people came to call on Sophia, and Victoria
Eugenie enjoyed this interaction and grew up to
be a poised and lovely young lady.

Princess Victoria Eugenie of Mulvedania

In an era when about half of Europe’s
population did not live to be more than 50 years
old, Sophia was aware she was very old, indeed.
She was greatly concerned that her own health
was deteriorating and aware she needed to make
some kind of provision for a suitable marriage
for Victoria Eugenie. She forced herself to
become acquainted with the young sons of her
relatives but was unimpressed. At the same time
she was becoming increasingly aware of
Victoria’s interest in Charles Mara. The Maras
were first cousins of the Hectors. Sophia was
very impressed with Charles and now
considered him her heir. At the age of 16, all
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alone in the world except for his relationship
with Sophia and Princess Victoria, he officially
became Prince Charles of Mulvedania.

Sophia watched with very careful attention
the interaction between Victoria and Charles. In
all the years since Sophia’s break with King
Hector, she had observed how Charles, the ever
calm and pleasant, continued to run the Royal
Kitchens and delivered cakes and pastries to
everyone every week. It was a tribute to
Charles’ skill in dealing with people that Hector
did not prevent him from going to the North
Castle. Every time he came, Charles brought a
special cake for Victoria. He was very
innovative and the cakes were very pretty. It
was clear to Sophia that the little princess really
liked Charles Mara and Sophia was convinced
that he cared for her deeply.

On Charles sixteenth birthday Sophia
invited him and his grandfather Sven Lars Mara
to the North Castle to meet with her right-hand
man, an American of Mulvedanian descent,
Armand Webber. The meeting was very hush-
hush, as Sophia did not want to rouse the ire of
the ruling monarch, Hector VII who was
becoming increasingly unpredictable in his
actions. Even the Crown Princess Victoria was
not invited to this meeting. Sophia greeted Sven
Lars with much affection as she had not seen
him for several years and he was her first
cousin. But then the foursome got down to the
very serious and significant purpose of the day.
Sophia wished to adopt Charles Mara, name him
as her son and official heir and pronounce him
Prince Charles of Mulvedania.
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This satisfied her deepest needs for the future of
the Kingdom and the protection of Princess
Victoria. She truly loved Charles and admired
and respected him and this day made her very
happy, but she did not include Victoria in this
meeting because Victoria was fourteen years old
at this time and Sophia had serious doubts about
the attitude of her nanny, Gussie.

Charles had essentially been on his own
since the age of sixteen. His parents and
grandmother were all gone. Under the
supervision of his grandfather Sven Lars Mara,
despite his youth, he was put in charge of the
Royal kitchens. Charles was a very solid and
serious young person. King Hector told
everyone he had the best pastry chef in Europe
and everyone who came to Mulvedania agreed.
The Royal Kitchens under Charles’ control were
spectacular.

Prince Charles Mara of Mulvedania
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Particularly reassuring to Sophia was the
interaction between young Prince Charles and
her faithful minion, Armand Webber. Armand
came to Mulvedania twice a year, and Victoria
and Charles were very devoted to him. He was
something of a father figure for them, and his
warmth and affection was very spontaneous and
genuine. Now, at this meeting, with the newly
dubbed Prince Charles, Armand pledged his
fealty to him and his total dedication and
loyalty. It was a touching moment when Charles
jumped up and embraced Armand.

This reassuring event exceeded Sophia’s
fondest hope and she was filled with
thanksgiving for this gift of Fate. She knew she
no longer had to be concerned about her
children. Under Armand’s protection they
would be safe and saved, more than any loving
parent could ask for. She did not make a public
announcement of any kind knowing how
paranoid King Hector had become, but that did
not make any difference because Prince Charles
was now her son and heir and her entire fortune
was vested in him. She believed it was only
wise to keep Prince Charles in the good graces
of the King who indeed appreciated his culinary
expertise.

Two years went by and Sophia Dagmar was
becoming increasingly aware she was perilously
ill. She called Prince Charles in to discuss with
him the fact that she had to go to Copenhagen to
receive advanced medical treatment for what
she was convinced was tuberculosis. The
problem was that over the years, King Hector
had become more and more paranoid. A recent
census had revealed to him that many
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Mulvedanians were emigrating out of the
country to Denmark, England, and the United
States. The Alfreds, always content in their
castle and with their gold mine, remained in the
country. The Hectorians, his own people, were
leaving every chance they could get. It was a
shocking revelation to him, a terrible
affirmation that his reign was not popular with
his people. In his view this was an acute
warning flag and he decided that no
Mulvedanian citizen be allowed to leave the
country. He was particularly fearsome of any
finger being pointed at him suggesting that
Mulvedanian medicine was less than ideal. But
the main reason that Sophia put off getting
medical care for herself for so long was because
of the financial demands of her international
banking activities. But now she knew time was
closing in.

It was decided that the old touring car,
which had been such a source of pleasure to
them in their early years, would now be the
means of escape from Mulvedania. The Alfreds,
bless their hearts, completely lined the car with
heavy gold leaf and then put the old leather
lining back on to cover it up. They arranged for
Sophia to lie across the backseats with Gussie
and Matilda sitting in the jump seats to take care
of her, the best they could, en route. In the front,
driving the car was Charles Mara and his new
bride, Victoria. The Lutheran Bishop, sworn to
secrecy, officiated in a hasty marriage for the
two young people. Fortunately, there was plenty
of gold. There was plenty of gold to cross the
palms of the people guarding the gates, and
other functionaries. The little group made its
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way out of Mulvedania, across Germany, and
safely north into Denmark.

Prince Charles of Mulvedania married

Princess Victoria Eugenie

In Charlottenlund, cousin Lars Josef was
waiting for them and Sophia was bundled out of
the car and into a hot bath, and all welcomed a
hearty hot meal. Two mornings later at 11
o’clock the entire family assembled in the
Lutheran Cathedral, Holmens Kirke, in
downtown Copenhagen, where the marriage of
Prince Charles Mara and Princess Victoria
Eugenie was officially sanctified. Then Sophia
was taken to a small private hospital in
Charlottenlund where the best possible medical
care was made available to her. Matilda stayed
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with her there and Gussie remained with
Victoria.

It was a time of acute distress to all of them
because it was abundantly clear that Sophia
Dagmar was not going to survive. Sophia had
made ample arrangements for every relative,
every friend, and every servant who ever helped
her. She now was turning over to Prince Charles
and Princess Victoria her entire fortune. She had
put Prince Charles in charge of all her remaining
holdings, knowing that all of Europe was going
to go down to the might of the German war
machine. She was reassured that Charles was in
touch with her New York representative
Armand Webber, the ever resilient, reliable
Armand Webber who could deal with all
circumstances good and bad. She had thought of
almost every contingency and worn herself out
to the last degree. Now it was just a matter of
time and she would be gone. Prince Charles and
Princess Victoria would soon be on their own.

Copenhagen is very far north of most of
Europe. It juts out into the Kattegat, which
connects the North Sea to the Baltic Sea.
Charlottenlund is the next to the last stop on the
train out of Copenhagen.

Because Denmark is so far north it has very
long, late summer evenings. Charles and
Victoria walked for miles every evening after
they visited Sophia. This was an exciting and
frightening time for them both. They realized
they were really blessed with amazing amounts
of money and huge responsibilities to use it
wisely and well. The days and the nights
stretched out before them. The sadness they felt
hearing Poland was invaded on the first of
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September struck terror in their hearts. They
spoke to Lars Joseph about coming with them to
America and bringing his family but he
declined. “No”, he said, “I am an old Dane and I
will die here in this house where I was born™.

Sophia also recognized there was no
changing his mind and she said, “Very well, I
respect your choice. But now before I die [ want
to see Christian X. Will you bring Christian to
my bedside”. And that is how it happened that
the great King Christian X, the one who was to
stand up to the Nazis in 1940 on his horse
flaunting the Star of David, defying the Nazis
and defending the liberty of his people, this
brave and wonderful cousin Christian X came to
see Sophia. Victoria and Charles knew it was a
very touching moment in both their lives
because all knew it was a moment in time that
could never be repeated.

Sophia is not surprised that none of her
family will leave with Charles and Victoria. She
knew there was still a little time before
Denmark would fall to the Nazis and she also
knew that while her death was soon and
inevitable it would not occur for some weeks to
come. When they were sitting beside her bed
she said to them “I want you two to see
Denmark. Victoria has been here before with
me, but Charles, you should know the home
country. Just north of Charlottenlund is the
famous Deer Forest, with towering old trees and
deer running around for everyone to see. It is a
very beautiful park, a royal park, where royalty
could hunt and nowadays the public can visit”.
Charles promised he would take Victoria there
to see the beautiful deer park Dyrhaven.
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They were also very appreciative of the
bountiful bakeries and the open face
sandwiches, the Danish smerrebred that
Denmark was famous for. Sophia suggested
they get a good guide to take them to the Royal
Theater, see Amalienborg Castle and the
different Embassies on Osterbrogade. And of
course, there was the glorious Tivoli Gardens,
the elegant amusement park in the heart of
Copenhagen that also offered ballet and theater
programs unparalleled in Europe.

The other amusement park, Bakken goes
back into history to the 16" century and is the
world’s oldest amusement park. No one seeing
Denmark wants to miss the Little Mermaid
statue in Copenhagen Harbor and so many other
places to include, like the walking street
GaaGade and the king’s new plaza Kongens
Nytor and the townhall square Raadhusplads.
Kronborg Castle in the northern town of
Helsinger is another famous landmark. They
saw it all and enjoyed it enormously.

And so, time dragged on, and eventually the
inevitable occurred. On November 4™ 1938
Sophia died. The days had grown dark with only
a few hours of daylight and winter began to set
in. It was time to leave Europe for England.
Before Sophia died they asked her if they should
drive the old touring car to the ferry to cross
over into England. She turned to Lars Josef and
asked him if he would like to have the car.
“There is gold leaf under the lining and it might
be very lifesaving in case the Germans take
Denmark. What do you think, Lars Josef?” and
he replied “Leave the car”. Charles then hired a
limousine to take them to the ferry.
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The decision had to be made where Sophia
was to be buried. It was decided upon that a
ceremony would be held at the historic Roskilde
Cathedral in Denmark at the burial plot for the
Royal Family, where twenty Danish Kings and
seventeen Danish Queens have been buried. But
Sophia’s remains were then to be sent to
Mulvedania. There was an enormous turnout to
honor Sophia. There was not a family that
Sophia knew that hadn’t benefited from her
generous spirit and her financial gifts. And
finally the day came when her body was sent
back to Mulvedania for burial in the Royal
Crypt next to young Queen Helena. As big as
the reception was in Denmark, the response in
Mulvedania was even more overwhelming.
Sophia was truly beloved. The kindness and
warmth that she extended continued on after her
death. There truly was no one like Sophia.
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DEATH AND TRANSITION
Chapter IV

When the final goodbyes were said to
Sophia Dagmar, concluding one of the oldest
ceremonies in Denmark, her body then was sent
to Mulvedania for an even more extravagant
show of love and appreciation. But Charles and
Victoria did not go back with the body. It was
Sophia’s expressed wish that they go on to
England, and she had written to her relatives
there and made arrangements for them to stay at
the famous Claridge’s Hotel, which many said,
was really an extension of Buckingham Palace.

The Dining Hall at Claridge’s Hotel

Sophia had apartments and arrangements
with the best hotels in the world besides
Claridge’s, including the famous Waldorf
Astoria in New York City. She instructed
Charles and Victoria to use them freely and live
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comfortably as they should with the vast amount
of money they had inherited. “You are royalty
in your own right,” she reminded them, “Never
forget that.” And so when all the details were
attended to, the day finally came when the Mara
family, which included Matilda and Gussie,
embarked for England. Until the decision was
made that the touring car lined with heavy gold
leaf and covered with its original leather lining,
until it was decided that the touring car would
stay with Lars Josef, Charles was not sure what
would occur. But once the touring car was
covered over with a tarp in the back of the
garage of Lars Josef’s palatial house, Charles
made immediate arrangements for a limousine
to pick up the Mara family and take them to the
ferry for the crossing into England.

Victoria was terrified of boats. But she said
nothing because, until the last minute, they
thought they had to transport the touring car.
Now that it was decided that the car would
remain with Lars Josef, it was really too late to
change their plans. And we all know what
happened on that ghastly crossing.

The weather seemed nice enough when they
boarded the ferry at Esbjerg but very shortly
thereafter the weather changed sharply. And the
next thing they knew the storm of the century
was tossing the ferry about like a toy in a
bathtub.

Victoria had been terrified of boats ever
since the famous steamship Titanic went down
on April 15" 1912, taking with it some of her
relatives. She boarded the ferry tight-lipped and
trembling with Charles, Matilda and Gussie.

The details of their passage were too awful
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to try to remember. It was a nightmare crossing.
And each member of the Mara family group had
bad memories to add to the current horror story.
Everyone knew of some storm or other,
everyone remembered horrible tales. The most
famous one, of course was the loss of the
Spanish Armada in 1588, which ruined the
future of Spain and changed Europe’s history
forever. They all knew that just last year, in
September 1938, just a year before, a terrible
hurricane had created chaos.

Somehow or other that miserable crossing of
1939 ended and they landed at Harwich,
England with a car waiting to transport them to
Claridge’s where Sophia -- bless her heart -- had
maintained apartments for herself and her staff
and where the Mara party was welcomed to
comfort and elegance. Claridge’s was the place
where visiting kings and their minions resided,
where the world’s celebrities made their
presence in Britain known.

The exhausted foursome were almost too
tired to breathe or eat, but all felt better soon
excepting Matilda. Matilda was 76 years old.
She had been born a noble woman, the Grand
Duchess of the tiny principality of Remini.
When she was deposed by her nephew who
seized control of the assets of her country, she
found herself cast out with her young daughter,
penniless and alone. When Sophia Dagmar
heard of her plight she welcomed Matilda to her
court where Matilda remained for the rest of her
adult life. The death of Sophia and the events of
the last few months had been very hard on
Matilda. With Sophia being gone, she was at a
loss and unsure of her life and strength. She
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stayed in bed at the hotel and felt that she could
not take a tourist look at England. It was just too
strenuous.

Sophia had set up a date for them with the
Royal family and had suggested that they tour
England first because the date at Buckingham
Palace was two weeks hence. But Gussie
declared she was going to stay behind with her
mother, Matilda, so Charles and Victoria
decided to see England on their own.

Victoria imagined it would be more fun to
take a regular tour bus and see England as just
another tourist. She thought it would be fun to
be with British people who were on holiday and
all the while be on her honeymoon trip with
Charles. So they took off on a tour of Wales and
Scotland, a trip that would bring them back to
London in time for their visit with the Royal
Family.

For Victoria it was the most wonderful ten
days of her life. She and Charles enjoyed every
aspect of the trip. At night they stopped at
historic inns. With no Gussie around, they slept
wrapped in each other’s arms. It was one of the
happiest times in their lives. Everyone aboard
the bus knew they were on their honeymoon.
Every morning they came down to breakfast
glowing with happiness, and good health.
Everyone aboard enjoyed having them touring
with them. They explored many interesting
castles and appreciated the lovely countryside.
Victoria was intrigued with the remarkable
woolens and loved purchasing them. They
found a fabulous wool jacket with matching hat
for Charles in Scotland. In Wales, Victoria
bought a cape made of a marvelous blue and
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green woven fabric. On this trip they were
introduced to clotted cream, and they visited the
castle that belonged to the Prince of Wales.
They particularly liked Chester and its Roman
walls. In fact they liked all the historic places
that had been occupied by the Romans.

When they returned to London to Claridge’s
Hotel, they realized they had a few days to spare
and decided to go to Bath. Bath was the historic
watering hole for the Romans which now,
hundreds of years later, had become a
fashionable place for titled Brits to frolic. Bath
had many impressive brick houses and many,
many marvelous relics of Roman occupation
from earlier history.

King George VI

The time now had come to go to
Buckingham Palace for tea with King George
and his lovely Queen, Elizabeth Bowes-Lyon.
The Queen had been a close friend and admirer
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of Charles’ mother, the singer Marguerite
Nielsen.

Queen Elizabeth Bowes-Lyon

From the moment they arrived they felt at
ease and happy to be sitting down together as
relatives of each other. For Victoria, King
George VI was a kindred spirit. Two shy people
recognized each other. The King was tall,
slender, and handsome and Victoria was
immediately drawn to him. There had been few
men in her life because from the age of two she
had been taken to the North Castle to live at the
court of Sophia Dagmar who was a maiden
lady. Although her brother and father lived in
Mulvedania she had never spoken to either of
them. The rift that had occurred when she was
two years old had never been healed or amended
and she had never been acquainted with any
men besides Charles Mara as she grew up. She
thought King George VI was charming and
enjoyed sitting with him in conversation.
Charles, meanwhile, was talking with Queen
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Elizabeth, so warm and friendly and welcoming
she reminded him of the wonderful women who
had been in his life, his Alfred Grandmother
Sonia and his famous mother, the singer, Marnie
Nielsen who in her later career was called the
“Bubble Girl”. She was everybody’s darling,
onstage and off, and Queen Elizabeth knew her
well and was one of her most ardent fans.

The North Castle in Belvedere, Mulvedania

So when Charles was seated next to her, the
first thing she said was “Tell me what happened
to your mother". And he replied “Sad to tell you
that when she was performing in Monaco, a
drunken cabbie mowed her down on the
sidewalk in front of her hotel. It was a terrible
shock to everyone. She lingered for two days
but never regained consciousness. My father
Leo was performing with her in Monaco and
they called him down to the sidewalk to see her
lying there in a heap.” Queen Elizabeth said
over and over, “What a loss, what a loss”.

So Charles went on. “The next thing that
happened. Leo brought her body back to
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Mulvedania and Marnie was buried in the
family crypt in the Cathedral of Mulvedania.
Leo never left Mulvedania again. He stayed
on to help Grandmother Sonia with her
vegetable garden and with her rose garden. He
helped Grandfather Mara organize his records,
which were so troublesome to him. And he
helped me with my homework. Having my
father around when I was growing up was a
wonderful bonus for me. Leo took me on long
hikes to secret waterfalls he knew when he was
growing up. In fact, he knew all about the birds
and the butterflies and even snakes and bugs,
enough to delight a little boy’s heart. So you
see” Charles said, “Despite the loss of my
mother, I was a very loved and blessed child”.
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The Cathedral in Belvedere, Mulvedania

Elizabeth Bowes-Lyon listened with a heart
full of sympathy and understanding. Charles
went on to say how fortunate his childhood was
compared to Victoria’s and now Elizabeth
asked, “All in your family have passed away?”
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Charles replied, “Yes, Grandma Sonia died and
after that my dad, Leo, caught cold and died of
pneumonia. That left only Grandpa Mara. He
was a remarkable old man and he taught me
how to run the kitchens of Mulvedania so the
country could accommodate vast numbers of
visitors at any one time. But he too passed
away. So if it had not been for Victoria and
Sophia Dagmar, I would have been all alone in
the world.” Then he said “ Victoria and I are on
our honeymoon now. We are having a
wonderful time in England”. So they sat there in
pleasant talk for some time. Princess Elizabeth,
later to become Queen of England, was then
thirteen and Princess Margaret was nine years
old and Victoria was nineteen, still a young
princess herself. While they were sitting there
talking about the impending war in Europe in
came the equerry to the King, Victoria’s cousin,
Lord Clydesdale, who handed King George a
document.

Lord Clydesdale
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Then he came over to Victoria and kissed
her, “Happy to see you again, little Princess,
now grown up”’ he said to her, and then
everyone looked at King George whose face had
clouded over. He had in his hand the message,
which he now was about to read, the message
that said “Sorry to report that the Crown Prince
of Mulvedania has driven his Bugatti off a cliff.
King Hector, with the help of Doctor Tomass, is
being taken to the floor of the valley to the site
of the Prince’s death”.

1938 Bugatti

The pall was palpable. No one said a word.
All of them sat in chilling silence as they
absorbed the horror of this message. Finally,
Lord Clydesdale turned to Charles and asked,
“What can I do for you, Sir. How can I assist
you?” And Charles said, “Put me in touch with
Juan Trippe of Pan Am” and then Charles
turned to Victoria and said, “We have to go
back as soon as possible, Sweetheart” And she
nodded, “Yes, yes”. So Charles stood up and
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followed Lord Clydesdale to his office and
arrangements were made with Juan Trippe that
the Mara family would fly together into
Mulvedania. Juan Trippe would supply the
plane and pilot and he would bring with him
nurse Adell, whom Victoria knew and liked. So
they said goodbye to the King and Queen and
the two little princesses and let Lord Clydesdale
assist them in getting to the plane and the
takeoff the next day.

The plane landed on the Polo field in the
center of Belvedere and Doctor Tomass met
them there to tell them that the King was sitting
by the shore of the rushing river in the canyon,
an almost impenetrable canyon, and that he had
not moved, nor eaten nor rested for one instant
since the terrible news had reached them.
Victoria said, impulsively, “Lets go there at
once” but Doctor Tomass said, “No, no child,
lets have a bite to eat first and then lets face the
day’s terrible events.” So they all went to the
dining room in the hotel overlooking the Polo
field and Charles ordered several lunch boxes
for anyone at the river who might need them.
The good Doctor arranged for two cars and they
drove down the dusty canyon road to the river’s
edge, and there on a rock, sat Hector VII, the
ruling King of Mulvedania.

Sprawled over the rock was the body of the
Crown Prince, sheltered in his father’s arms. It
was a modern day Pieta. The picture, so
unforgettable, had made big news in the
Western press especially in the rotogravure
sections of the newspapers, the kind of world
attention that Hector had always wanted. But
now he was barely alive in a catatonic state
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unable or unwilling to respond. When Victoria
stood next to them on the shore of the raging
mountain stream, she told them both that she
loved them and was very sorry for their loss but,
as expected, there was no response.

Dr. Alfred Tomass

The terrible disappointment that she felt that
no reconciliation had ever seemed possible
broke her heart. But she accepted this tragedy as
part of circumstances always beyond her control
and she rejoined Charles and Doctor Tomass
and went back to the North Castle with them, to
her own bedroom where she had grown up and
she waited there for the news about the death of
her father. His death occurred the next day.

Within two hours of the announcement of
the demise of King Hector VII, Philippe
Palmentier seized the reigns of government and
pronounced the Kingdom of Mulvedania no
more. Mulvedania, from now on was to be
known as the Republic of Mulvedania and
Palmentier declared himself Prime Minister.
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But Charles Mara stepped in immediately
and saw to it that no further erosion could take
place. He and the Alfreds made Phillippe an
offer that in good sense he could not refuse. His
Watchworks would be embellished and glorified
so that it would become the most dazzling in
Europe and he would never fear poverty again.
The Republic would not only have a new and
vastly improved Watchworks, but also new
roads, new museums, and increased fame. The
Alfreds were already building a new museum on
the bank of the river. The Alfred artist, Regnier
was creating a sculpture on the spot where the
King had sat holding his son. Everywhere in the
Republic was new growth and new hope.
Phillippe Palmentier and his son Gilberto were
enormously excited about the splendid turn of
events and they were content with the growth
and prosperity that surrounded them.

Meanwhile Victoria had to deal with the
volumes of mail that poured in from all over the
world. She, Charles, and the Alfred clan felt
they had to immediately invite their royal
relatives and their worldwide friends to mourn
and rejoice with them and that is what occurred.
They had never worked harder in their lives.
They were inundated with requests for their
attention and their affection. Every bed in the
Republic was spoken for, occupied by visitors,
and outside the gates of Mulvedania many
places were coping with the overflow of
mourners who came to pay their respects to the
King and the Crown Prince. Juan Trippe was
glad he came to help his friend Charles Mara
but even more so because he had the chance to
meet many of the most well connected people in
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Europe and abroad, a boost to his emerging
airline, Pan Am.

The name of the country Mulvedania
remained, but the Kingdom was no more. The
Republic of Mulvedania was now the name of
the territory. This tumultuous time kept Victoria
and Charles on their toes, as they assumed
responsibility for the transition of the old
Monarchy into the new Republic. Charles was
absolutely fascinated with Victoria. He saw a
true Princess alive to the needs of a new
country, and he marveled at the sight of her
taking command and coming through with true
royal colors.

It was a very sad time for all of them. The
tragedy of Hector's life was all too evident. This
poor accident-prone King who was Victoria's
father was a person pitiable and sad. He was a
lonely man. He had failed in his position as a
husband and as a father. And while he had had
much joy and success with his Kingdom in the
early days, later as difficulties compounded, he
became a torn-apart person, painfully alone and
confused.

Victoria coming through with her royal role
brought much healing to everyone. And on the
day of the funeral, in front of the Cathedral, she
found herself facing none other than Doctor
Rupert Jonas, the man whom her Aunt Sophie
had called the Butcher of Belvedere. He was
standing with a lady whom Victoria presumed
must be his wife. She said, "Doctor Jonas?" And
he replied, "Yes, Ma'am. I am Doctor Jonas,"
and she said, "I want you to know that I'm sorry
my Aunt Sophia was so adamant in regard to
you. I want you to know that I understand how
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difficult it must have been to have delivered a
large baby to my small mother. And I'm sorry
for any grief that my aunt's anger caused you™.

Doctor Rupert Jonas

She looked up into his face, the face of a
45-year-old man with hair graying and eyes
full of sadness, and he said, "Ma'am, I thank you
for those words." And then Victoria turned to
the lady by his side, "Is this your wife?" And he
said, "Yes, this is Genevieve." And she replied,
"Hello, Genevieve. My good thoughts go with
you." And Genevieve curtsied and said, "Thank
you, Princess Victoria. Thank you." Then
Victoria turned to Doctor Jonas and embraced
him. It was a teary moment for all of them.

The overflow of grief from around the world
was spontaneous and genuine. Everyone took
pity on the heartbroken King and the equally
tragic Crown Prince dead before his time in a
most dreadful accident. The Bugatti, the
beautiful black and red sports car that was the
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pride of the 17-year-old Crown Prince, was to
be restored. The museum that the Alfreds built
behind the statue of the king with the prince on
his lap, the modern day Pieta, was to be
preserved by the Alfred artist, Reignier. The
museum would turn out to be a tremendous
tourist attraction, which filled the coffers of the
Republic of Mulvedania much to the pleasure of
Philippe Palmentier and his son Gilberto.

Sophia Dagmar, Princess Royale of Mulvedania

The Cathedral remained the same, a
handsome building holding the remains of the
Mulvedanian Kings and Princes and its most
distinguished citizens. The young Queen, Helena
Victoria, mother of Princess Victoria, now lay
next to the remains of the famous Sophia
Dagmar, Europe's most exalted financier.

Some of the royal visitors stayed on for a
few days to embrace the royal young couple.
And then the final goodbyes were said and
Victoria and Charles with Matilda and Gussie
climbed into the plane with Juan Trippe, and
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they flew safely back to England and once again
came into their apartments at the Claridge’s
Hotel.

Once again they had to recover from the
ravages of travel and the emotional ups and
downs of their lives. But somehow this time was
easier. Charles was greatly encouraged by the
turn of events. Mulvedania would survive and
do well under the presidency of Philippe
Palmentier with the help of the Alfreds. The
wonderful Alfreds would continue mining their
gold and living off Sophia's securities.

Charles felt everyone was provided for and
above all his bride, wonderful beautiful Victoria
was now his wife and this filled him with joy.
They lingered in England for a few days but
realized they must leave because events in
Europe were becoming more and more ominous
and it was Sophia's explicit wish that they get to
the New World as promptly as was feasible.
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EVENTS UNPREDICTABLE
Chapter V

Pan Am had started its service between
England and the U.S.A. Despite the fears of
Matilda, who was terrified at the idea of flying,
despite all emotions and notions that members
of the foursome expressed, they got on the plane
to New York and settled down comfortably to
enjoy the flight.

But several hours later it became obvious to
Charles that Victoria was acutely ill. The
stewardess, who was a trained nurse, told
Charles that she would move Victoria into the
infirmary. And then soon after, he was informed
that Victoria was having a miscarriage. The
Captain consulted with him, and they decided
that New York was the closest destination for
landing, and that they would have an ambulance
waiting at the plane to transport her to the
closest hospital.

And that was the beginning of their life in
America. Mrs. Charles Mara lost her first baby.
Not an unusual thing for a teenage mother-to-be,
but nonetheless shocking and sad. But now that
was over with, everyone was hoping that soon
Victoria would be back at their apartments in
the Waldorf.

But meanwhile, Matilda and Gussie decided
they did not like to be on Park Avenue in New
York, in the heart of the city. They longed for
something more country and more homey. And
so while Victoria was in the hospital, Charles
and the ladies went to Greenwich Village, went
to that famous Washington Square Park that
artists knew and loved at the foot of 5™ Avenue.
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Then he took them to Gramercy Park at 23rd
street. It had a locked gate and they could enjoy
the park without worrying about the general
public, beggars, and other unknown and
undesirable types.

So it was decided that the furnished
brownstone house facing Gramercy Park, which
was four stories tall with its own elevator (many
brownstones were six stories tall), would more
than fill the requirements of Matilda and Gussie.
And Armand Webber, Sophia's man in New
York, quickly arranged the lease. When Victoria
came home to the Waldorf from the hospital,
Matilda and Gussie were settling into their new
home, seemingly very pleased with the turn of
events.

So Charles hoped that he had Victoria all to
himself, at long last he had this beautiful girl all

to himself, his life-long dream come true. To
him she was the most beautiful woman on earth.
He was the luckiest husband on earth. But this
pause in the frightening condition of Victoria’s
health did not last long. To everyone’s horror
Victoria had started to hemorrhage again.
Charles sent an urgent SOS to Armand Webber
who called an ambulance and alerted the
surgeon who had operated on her before. There
was no doubting now that Victoria was indeed a
very frail girl and she was quite ill. But in a few
days with good medical care and much-needed
blood transfusions Victoria came home to the
Waldorf hopeful that she would be as good as
new. Gussie was waiting anxiously for her
return to the apartment and Armand ordered
coffee and cake for everyone. It seemed like a
heartwarming welcoming party. Charles had
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arranged for the stewardess on Pan Am, Adell,
whom Victoria liked so much, to come and be
her nurse while she was recovering and so
hopefully all would go well.

But this little scene of domestic happiness
didn’t last very long. Charles felt that they
shouldn’t tire Victoria unduly and suggested
that perhaps everyone could go home. Then the
unexpected happened. Gussie announced that
she wasn’t going anywhere, “I am going to stay
here and guard Victoria”. Armand and Charles
looked at each other in surprise, hardly
comprehending what was happening.

But there was no stopping Gussie. Her
emotional dam had burst. She stood there in
defiance. “Victoria is too ill to be left without
me. No one is going to molest her while I am
here”. Victoria went even paler than she was,
“Maria Gustava don’t you say another word.
That’s quite enough, quite enough”. Victoria
was visibly trembling in her anger but there was
no stopping Gussie.

Charles recalled that Sophia Dagmar had
warned him that Gussie was insanely jealous
and protective of Victoria but neither he nor
Armand were aware of how deeply affected
Gussie was. Gussie had played the role of
mother to Victoria for seventeen of her nineteen
years. She knew all too well the tragic story of
Victoria’s mother, the young Queen Helena
Victoria. And her pent up fury at all men and
Charles Mara in particular for taking away her
Princess Victoria knew no bounds. “Please,
Gussie”, Victoria said, “Please no more. It’s not
fair to Charles”. And Gussie snarled at him and

54



said, “Yes, it is fair. He has no right to touch
you when you’re in such a condition”.

It was Gussies’ meltdown. As they stood
there in horror, Armand, the wonderful,
warmhearted teddy bear of a man gathered up
Gussies’ coat and putting it on her he enveloped
her in his arms but she could not restrain the
flow of vicious words. “You think Charles Mara
loves you, but he only used you to get control of
Sophia’s money. He never loved you, Victoria”.
Victoria sagged in her chair with her hands over
her ears, desperate to get away from this
onslaught. And Charles rushed to her side.

The next thing that happened was, Armand
slapped his hand hard over Gussie’s mouth and
as he dragged her to the elevator he called out
loud “Don’t listen to her, Victoria, she is out of
her mind with jealousy”. And the next thing
Gussie knew she was alone with Armand on a
side street south of the Waldorf Astoria just a
few doors east of Park Avenue. She found
herself standing bewildered and agitated at the
entrance of a brownstone house, Mulvedania
House. Armand was putting keys into the door
and he looked up at Gussie with icy coldness.
“Maria Gustava, make up your mind right this
instant whether you want to stay here with me
and face the consequences of what you have just
done, or I will call a cab and send you back to
your mother at Gramercy Park. But if you go
there, there is no coming back here, so make up
your mind, the old shriveled up life that you had
or a new life here with me, but I warn you it
isn’t going to be easy”.

She stood there too numb to answer. He put
the key in the door, a heavy door, and the door
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swung open. “What is it going to be, Maria?”
And she said, “I will stay with you” And that
was the beginning of the story of Armand and
Maria Gustava.

Armand Webber in Uniform

From then on Armand took Maria Gustava
under his wing. They were the perfect match for
each other. They were close in age she 31, he 35
and he was divorced and needing a hostess for
many of the social events that fell to his lot.

Gussie from then on was known as Maria
Gustava. She seemed to be a perfect match for
Armand. She had grown up in the court of
Sophia Dagmar. She knew a great deal about
protocol and the inner workings of the Kingdom
of Mulvedania. In fact no one knew more about
Sophia Dagmar than Maria Gustava. Her mother
Matilda was very old now, had her own
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companion and no longer needed the company
of her daughter, so fate arranged the perfect
answer for Maria Gustava. She would now be
hostess for Armand Webber and the two of them
became a pair and eventually married.

Maria Gustava

This made Victoria and Charles feel greatly
relieved. They felt like the sword of Damocles
had been removed from their lives. Both of
them were deeply devoted to Armand and if
Armand felt threatened by Maria Gustava it
certainly wasn’t evident. He was more than her
match. She was at first reluctant to give up her
independence and consider him or any other
man as a possible suitor, but he was so likeable
and lovable that eventually she found herself
much in love. This happy denouement was a
blessing for all. Victoria and Charles felt that at
last they could claim there own lives and forget
the no longer needed baggage of other times.
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But the fallout from Maria Gustava’s
outrageous outburst continued to exact its toll.
Victoria was so shaken and upset she could not
stop weeping. She said “Charles, please forgive
Maria Gustava. She can’t help her anger. She
feels displaced. But she was good to me all my
life and I hope we can be good to her now.”
Charles sat down next to her and marveled out
loud that Victoria could think of Maria
Gustava’s feelings after what had just occurred.
“It’s all right, Victoria, this break had to come
and she will be much better off going on to a
life of her own and so will we.” He felt so
tender toward Victoria. She was so sweet and ill
and so vulnerable and so perturbed. “My
Darling, all we have to think about now is us,
our own happiness, our own future”.

But these words of his upset her further
instead of being comforting. She was greatly
distressed and she blurted out, “All these
miscarriages mean the end of our life together.
The doctors told me I must not get pregnant
again for the next 5 years.” And Charles tried to
reassure her that in these modern times that’s
not a problem. “In fact, the gynecologist and the
surgeon are coming tomorrow afternoon to
check on you and they are going to give me
instruction on the latest birth control measures
so this is not the end of our honeymoon, it’s the
beginning.” Victoria was quiet for a moment
and finally she asked timidly, “Can that really
happen? This isn’t the end of our life together?”
Holding her in his arms, he tried to reassure her
that nothing could ever come between them,
nothing. All she needed was a little time now to
recover and then they would resume the fun life

58



that they had been enjoying before.

In a few weeks Victoria seemed to be well
enough to enjoy going out to dinner. The war
was raging in Europe, but in New York, one
would hardly know there was trouble anywhere.
They sampled the restaurants from the bottom
of Manhattan Island all the way to the end. They
considered every restaurant a dining experience
to remember and considered it an education for
the restaurant that Charles knew he wanted to
open someday, somewhere in the United States.
As Victoria became stronger it became a time of
great joy for them both and tremendous fun.

Time was on their side. As the war
continued in Europe, they did what they could
with their funds to ease life for their relatives
caught up in that holocaust. As usual
Mulvedania was untouched by war but not so
Denmark and not so Britain.

In Denmark, the great and noble King,
Christian X donned the yellow marker that
Danish Jews were ordered to wear by the
occupying Nazis. He went up and down the
streets on his horse, flaunting the yellow Star of
David, defying the Germans.

Germany attacked Denmark on April 9"
1940, just as Sophia had predicted. It was the
first time in its thousand-year history that
Denmark was completely conquered by
invaders. At first Germany pronounced
Denmark under “German Protection” but the
Danes worked secretly against this takeover and
in August 1943, King Christian X was placed
under military guard. Parliament was no more
and the army was also disbanded. Remarkably,
Danish naval officers sank their fleet in
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Copenhagen Harbor right under the noses of the
Germans. The Germans tried to arrest the 6000
Jews living in Denmark but this roused the ire
of the Danish underground. Lars Joseph, his
family and many others worked secretly with
other Danes to get at least 5000 of the Jewish
Community to safety in Sweden. The last year
of occupation was very difficult for the Danish
people but Denmark was liberated by allied
troops on May 5, 1945. The world recognized
the valor of the Danish people and Denmark
resumed its usual welcoming stance of
generosity and tolerance for all.

The war was not easy for Britain either. The
blitzkrieg flattened British cities and terrified
the populace. Little children were sent out of
London to the country to stay with families they
did not know. They were taught to put a stone in
their pocket and squeeze it when they felt afraid.

Charles and Victoria feared for the British
King and Queen, and royal cousins, but all of
them managed to withstand the Blitz and
emerged the victors. Everyone survived except
Victoria’s favorite cousin, her darling Derek,
Lord Clydesdale. While out on patrol he
perished with his rescue unit when a brick wall
collapsed on him and others. Till this day
Victoria’s eyes fill with tears when she thinks of
him, that terrible loss. Meanwhile, Hitler, the
crazy demon of Europe, the insane demon, the
insane devil, was finally getting his
comeuppance and the terrible time when Hitler
finally came face to face with his defeat was a
harrowing time for Europe.

Everyone knew that he had waged his
ghastly war on the Jews, but the gypsies, blacks,
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communists and the mentally ill were also in the
camps. Nobody realized the extent of the gas
chambers and the terrible evil that an unbridled
Germany in the hands of a madman could
evoke. The world lived in horror as
concentration camps were emptied of their
dying occupants.

But finally peace did come. Europe lay like
a broken and bleeding entity, suffering beyond
belief in its hope to restore sanity to the world
and some beauty and blessing to everyone.
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A DREAM FULFILLED
Chapter VI

The events of 1939 were dramatic enough
but now in 1940, it seemed that there was a new
reality. For Charles, that meant bringing
Victoria back to her previous health and state of
happiness before her miscarriage. He felt the
first thing was to move out of the Waldorf
Astoria. And so, he transferred Victoria and
their belongings to the Plaza Hotel at 59" and
5™ Ave. It was very convenient. Everyday he
and Victoria had lunch in the famous Oak
Room. And almost everyday Armand Webber
joined him and brought guests. At these lunches
Victoria said almost nothing. She sat quietly,
smiled, and listened carefully but made no
comment. They never knew who would come
for lunch. The British Consul Lord Sulgrave
came often to plan with Charles supplements to
help with Britain’s war effort. Others who came
were theater people like Gertrude Lawrence,
Beatrice Lilly and actor, Peter O’Toole, who
was to become famous for his role as Lawrence
of Arabia. Charles went out of his way to invite
clothes designers because he remembered how
much Victoria loved fashion in the days when
she was well. But it was very slow, Victoria’s
recovery. He was alarmed that she continued to
weigh only 92 pounds for many weeks and it
seemed there was no easy way for her to regain
her weight. But she seemed well enough and
happy, but very quiet.

Charles had instructed Armand Webber to
find him a building to buy on Central Park
South. The Plaza Hotel was very interesting as a
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place to live but it had its drawbacks. He wanted
to have a building with its own garden for
Victoria and was waiting as patiently as he
could until Armand could negotiate a purchase
of a building on Central Park South. Nothing
was readily available and it was becoming
increasingly clear that they’d have to make a
substantial offer to some reluctant seller in order
to get such a property.

Charles was hopeful that Victoria had
recovered from the shock of Gussie’s meltdown.
The terrible words that spilled out of Gussie’s
mouth could have taken a tremendous toll on
anyone’s self esteem and peace of mind. Her
accusation that Charles had never loved Victoria
and had used her only as a means of getting
control of Sophia’s fortune was too painful to
contemplate. It had sent a shiver of fear through
Charles that Victoria might actually have
believed that hateful accusation and he was ever
watchful of any sign that Victoria believed those
awful words. From the moment of their final
break with Gussie, Charles vowed he would
never leave Victoria alone again with anybody.
There was nothing, no one, and no possible
circumstance that could interfere with him
putting Victoria first in his schedule.

At the Plaza Hotel, every day Charles and
Victoria received guests at their table in the Oak
Room. The Plaza was located on Central Park
South at the very heart of New York’s most
elegant area, 59" and 5™ Ave, a very convenient
location for almost everyone. Lunchtime was a
very special interlude for them because almost
every day Armand Webber would join them and
bring with him whatever celebrities he had in

63



tow. Armand was a teddy bear of a man, big and
lovable and when he was present every meal
seemed festive. Charles was ever grateful to him
for removing Gussie (Maria) from their lives. It
was a great relief for all of them.

Charles felt particularly relieved because he
realized that if anybody on this earth could
control Maria Gustava it was Armand. Armand
for all his charms was not a person to be trifled
with. In Armand, Maria Gustava had met her
match.

Charles was also pleased that the waiters at
the Oak Room fussed over Victoria and brought
her little irresistible tidbits to eat. Charles was
ever hopeful that somehow she could get back
to her previous self, gain a few pounds again,
and have some of that sparkle and spunk that
had vanished with two hospitalizations. Gussie’s
incredible attack, which had reduced her to a
state of hysteria that took days to get over, did
not help her health either. Bless Armand; he
understood that there would not be any future
contact with this unseemly jealous Gussie. In
fact, Gussie was no more. Now she was Maria
Gustava the partner of Armand Webber, hostess
for numerous events that would further the
business interests of the estate of Sophia
Dagmar.

This was an ideal solution for all of them.
Maria Gustava had grown up at the court of
Sophia  Dagmar. Despite her personal
difficulties, it was likely that no one knew more
about people and policies in Mulvedania than
she did and Armand Webber was delighted to
have her as his official hostess in New York.
Besides which, he thought she was extremely
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attractive and he suspected that loneliness and
pain were at the bottom of her terrible attack on
the very fragile Victoria. He was sympathetic
and understanding but coldly accusing of her for
her unforgivable behavior and he saw to it that
she would never again be in Victoria’s presence
and would never come to the Oak Room for
lunch.

Charles and Victoria were very fond of
Armand and they would have been concerned
for him, except for the fact that he had more
than demonstrated that no one would ever take
advantage of him. He was a fabulous friend but
could be a formidable foe. Nonetheless, where
Maria Gustava was concerned, they were
uneasy about her relationship with Armand.

In all of her years as Victoria’s nanny, Maria
Gustava had never had a boyfriend. Now
unexpectedly, totally beyond her wildest
imagination, there was this impressive man in
her life, Armand Webber, who was the Lord
Chancellor of the former Kingdom of
Mulvedania. She was astonished and perplexed
and unsure what her role was to be. Despite her
seeming sophistication, she was in affairs of the
heart an inexperienced schoolgirl. And now to
her horror, just when life had opened new
possibilities for her, she had gone off the deep
end in her hatred of Charles Mara. She had
revealed the jealousy that his presence sparked
in her. Here she was on the eve of a new
adventurous part of life and she had ruined it by
her vicious outburst. She knew she had made a
tremendous mistake in the eyes of Armand
Webber and she didn’t know whether there was
any way that she could redeem herself.
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Until a few hours earlier she was totally
consumed with her all embracing hatred of
Charles Mara. Until just almost to this moment,
she hadn’t gotten a picture that Armand Webber
was actually considering her in the role of his
official hostess. The horror of what she had
done to discourage and dissuade him of his
plans with her was slowly dawning on her, and
she could not stop weeping.

He had said nothing to her en route to his
apartment but now he expected answers. “I
think”, he said “You and I have a few things to
say to each other if we are going to proceed in a
partnership. Is there anything you want to say to
me?” he asked her, and she just stood there
trembling, weeping softly. She did not reply.
“Until a few hours ago, I had the highest regard
for you, now I have the lowest. You revealed
yourself at your very worst today and you have
convinced me that I cannot trust you”. She said
nothing, unable to speak, filled with confusion
and chagrin. She could not come to her own
defense and the tears kept flowing.

Not many men can withstand a woman’s
tears and the next thing Armand knew he was
holding her in his arms, wanting to comfort her.
“If we do get together now” he found himself
saying to her “There is going to be a strong code
of behavior, and your separation from Victoria
and Charles is final. You will not participate in
any part of their lives, is that agreed?” He spoke
to her sternly and she replied through her tears
“Yes, I promise I will never interfere again”.
“Point number two, if you take on the job of
being my hostess it does not require that you put
up with me personally. You are perfectly free to
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tell me to get lost or if you want something
more personal that too is possible, so think it
over, and decide on what basis you want this
relationship to be”. She could not reply and
started to weep more than ever and he
responded by holding her tight and kissing her
forehead. “You know Maria, I always admired
you for the important role you played in
Mulvedania and I would be proud to have you
play an important role in New York, but you
have to promise me, no malicious power plays
or word games”. “Oh, I promise” she said
hastily, “I promise”. “I’'m glad you promised,
now tell me where do you want to spend the
night in a guest room on the third floor, or do
you want to stay here with me?” and she said “I
want to stay here with you”.

That is how the tenuous relationship
between Armand Webber and Maria Gustava
began, but there were still many issues that had
to be resolved. One of the most baffling to
Armand was Maria Gustava’s continuing
tearfulness. Finally he said to her. “Why are you
weeping? What is it you have to tell me that you
haven’t told me? What is it?” she said, “I have
to tell you, I guess”. She could hardly speak.
Obviously what she had to tell him was very
painful to her. Finally she blurted out, “But if
you are looking ahead to a relationship with me
I guess I have to tell you, she repeated. I have
never been in a relationship before”. His mind
tried to grasp this truth and it sunk in with some
difficulty. Was this stunning looking woman
saying to him that she was totally inexperienced,
totally? When he confronted her with this truth
she said through her tears, “Yes, I never had a
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boyfriend”. He laughed, “Well I think it’s high
time don’t you? May I ask you? May I be your
boyfriend?” And still weeping, she threw herself
into his arms. “So no more tears” he told her “
No more tears, okay? So we’ll go to see the
doctor tomorrow, and then we’ll go on with our
lives okay?” And she agreed happily.

The next day, the doctor confirmed what
Maria Gustava had told him. He came out to
Armand in the waiting room and said, “This
lady is indeed a virgin. You can never be sure,
but in this case there is no doubt, so now is a
question of what is to be done? Leave things
alone or make it easier and open her up?” So
they asked her what she wanted done and she
said, “Lets make life easier”. She went back into
the doctor’s office, he gave her a few whiffs of
anesthesia and he broke the membrane. Maria
Gustava was on her way to becoming a woman,
no longer a maiden lady.

They thanked the doctor and tumbled out of
his office exhilarated by the turn of events.
“Now what do you want to do, my Darling”
Armand asked her, and she looked at him and
smiled happily. “Should we go out to dinner and
celebrate? Do you want to rest after what you
went through? What do you wish? Do you want
to go dancing?” She smiled and said,
“Tomorrow night, okay? Not tonight”.

All the while, while their personal lives
unfolded, Charles continued to look around
New York for properties to purchase. He was
more and more aware that for his office and his
home with Victoria he wanted a building on
Central Park South, ideally between 5" and 6™
avenues. He and Armand poured over real estate
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maps and finally identified the building that
would be most ideal. And once they decided
that, Armand ascertained that a financial amount
well above the current market would get the
building for Charles.

The Plaza Hotel

It was a very happy luncheon at the Oak
Room when Charles told Victoria that he had
bought a building a few doors from the Plaza
Hotel. “That means we still come to the Oak
Room for lunch every day, Sweetie, and it
means I can have my office on the bottom two
floors and we’ll have the top two floors for our
residence. And then you will have a very big
project to make the top two floors we live on
just what you want, room for a garden and a
pool and anything else that you might fancy”.
He reached over and kissed her. “It’s going to
be a fun project for all of us”. Charles liked the
idea of having the ground floor and the floor
above it as a place where he and Armand could
take care of the business that Sophia Dagmar
had entrusted to them. Floors three and four
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would be guest rooms and floors five and six
would be their residential quarters.

Victoria was happy and excited about the
opportunity of decorating their new living
quarters. She could hardly wait until the new
building was made available to them so she
could begin with their decorating plans. She was
thrilled that now she and Charles would have
their first home together.

The day finally came that they were given
the keys to the building. Victoria decided that
the decorating firm of Gordon and Jones would
be the group she would use. Millicent was the
chief decorator and Victoria felt she could work
with her very comfortably. Now she wanted to
talk to Charles about his color preferences and
already Millicent was bringing in sketches of
architectural changes that could be made.
During these many weeks neither Charles nor
Victoria had any contact with Maria Gustava.

The men were already working on their
plans for the bottom 2 floors, which were their
offices where they could take care of the
business that Sophia Dagmar entrusted to them.
The 3" floor would be guest rooms. And
already they had on the door the names Armand
Webber Charles Mara and Associates.

The ground floor was now open to the
public, easily entered from the street, and
welcoming to all comers. The second floor
would offer plush conference rooms and a
refreshment center. The third floor would offer
guest rooms to important clients. On the ground
floor, a small lobby featured an elevator for the
use of the occupants of the residential floors for
four, five and six. Much of this was already
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taking place because Gordon and Jones were
offered a bonus for their exclusive attention and
as a result progress was being made very
quickly. When Armand was finally able to pay a
visit, the downstairs floors were attractive and
functioning. Floor two was handsomely
furnished and glamorous.

When Charles and Victoria saw how much
room there was for their residence, they decided
that floor four in their section would be guest
rooms also, floors three and four will be for very
special guests. Victoria had not made such swift
progress with her plans but Charles reassured
her that there was no pressing need for her to
hurry as they could continue to stay at the Plaza
Hotel indefinitely if she desired. She was not to
feel any pressure or concern. She should take all
the time she needed in creating the dream house
she had imagined.

One thing they had decided on was that the
sixth floor would have a cabana, a small pool, a
vegetable garden and flowers. The fifth floor
would be their living quarters. And of course the
fourth floor would be the guest rooms. The rest
of the year was spent in the perfecting of the
house.

Meanwhile, Armand had no illusions that
Maria Gustava was going to be happy without
multiple commitments to activities outside of
herself. He was hoping she would get involved
with the work of Eleanor Roosevelt who was
wife of the President Franklin Delano
Roosevelt. Armand encouraged Maria to
become a member of Freedom House, which
Eleanor Roosevelt was supporting. Freedom
House was designed to launch the founding of
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The United Nations.

But unknown to Armand, Maria had another
involvement, which would come to him as a
wonderful surprise. Three days a week, she
walked uptown to the Art Students League on
West 57" street (followed by the security
officers assigned by Mr. Ogilvie, whom she had
sworn to secrecy). She was working on two
large canvases, both portraits of Armand, one in
full regalia as the Lord Chancellor of
Mulvedania and the other as Armand Webber,
head of the Mulvedanian Community Center in
New York City. These were life size portraits of
Armand. Every brushstroke was a pleasure to
her.

Maria Gustava was still a spitfire. She had
enormous energy but under Armand’s guiding
hand she had learned a great deal of tact and felt
genuine concern for the feelings of other people.
He really had come to love Maria Gustava, but
there never was a boring moment with her in his
life. Her presence was a welcome relief to the
dull repetitions of everyday living.

Meanwhile, Victoria had put on a few
pounds to her husband’s great relief. His fear for
Victoria’s survival was ever with him. To see
her regaining some of her previous strength and
joie de vivre was enormously encouraging to
him. He gave credit to the fun job of creating
their dream house, which was so fulfilling for
Victoria and because they shared every decision
she made. It brought them closer. So the year
1940 found Charles and Victoria, and Armand
and Maria in good health and emotionally in a
good place. The future looked brighter.
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WHO IS ARMAND WEBBER?
Chapter VII

For twenty years, Armand Webber has been
considered one of the most eligible bachelors in
New York City. Ever since his divorce from
Leola Leandreau, the Spanish dancer, many
women have pursued Armand. He is very well
known because he is the leader of the very
small, but influential, Mulvedanian Community
in America. In these same years there was a
saying in international circles that a person is 4s
rich as an Argentine. But in New York and New
England, this saying was almost superseded by
the descriptive statement As rich as a
Mulvedanian.

Mulvedania House is Armand’s lavish gift
to Mulvedanian society. It offers its members a
remarkable canopy of protections. From the
cradle to the grave, any Mulvedanian anywhere
knows that he or she can turn to the
Mulvedanian Community for any or all needed
services. Armand is the architect of this
remarkable cloak of security provided without
question to every Mulvedanian. He was the
Chief Operating Officer of the Kingdom of
Mulvedania until 1939 when the Kingdom
ceased to exist. Muldania became the Republic
that succeeded the Kingdom. But even though
the Kingdom is no more, the ever-expanding
wealth and influence of the Mulvedanian
Community has continued to build each year
since with its dynamic center in New York City.

Armand was born in the city of Belvedere,
the capital city of Mulvedania, in 1904. He was
the only child of the world famous philosopher,
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Thomas Hobbes Webber. His mother, Juliana
Webber, was a theoretical mathematician when
in the 1930s she joined the group working with
Neils Bohr on quantum mechanics in
Copenhagen, Denmark. Armand was immensely
proud of her, excited for her working at the very
frontier of breakthrough science, the exploration
of the universe.

Armand grew up in academic circles. When
he was sixteen years old, both his parents joined
the faculty of Yale University in New Haven,
Connecticut. Armand found Yale a great place
to go to college and graduate school. He was
enthusiastic about all sports and participated in
several activities including Track & Field and
Gymnastics. He joined the Yale Rowing Team
and was honored to represent Yale at the 1924
Olympic Summer Games in Paris, France.
When he came back from Europe he became
more active in music, sang with a choir and
enjoyed being in a barbershop quartet.

At Yale, he majored in Economics and
became a specialist in Public Planning and the
Financial Management of Municipalities, to the
delight of his mentor, the Princess Royale,
Sophia Dagmar of Mulvedania. He wrote two
well-known books on the management of cities,
considered classics to this day. When Armand
graduated in 1930 with his PhD, Sophia
appointed him not only Lord Chancellor and
Chief Operating Officer of the Kingdom of
Mulvedania, but also Director of her enormous
security investment firm, Banque L’ Enterprise.

The only down event of his stay at Yale
University was his brief encounter of marriage
and divorce from Leola Leandreau. When
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Armand looked back, he understood better what
led to this disastrous experience. He recalled
how over a period of two years Leola trapped
him in circumstances he had never imagined. At
first Armand and his roommate Philip Johnston
were very pleased to escort this young good
looking girl around the campus each time she
came to town. But on the third or forth visit she
started to give her exclusive attention to
Armand. Looking back on it, Armand was
convinced that Leola and her so called father
Leon had figured out that Armand was one of
those rich Mulvedanians and he became their
target. So on the next two or three times that
Leola came to New Haven she concentrated her
charms on him. Instinctively, he felt uneasy
about Leola but as she became increasingly
warm and receptive to him, he tried to quell his
feelings of doubt. Then, almost to his surprise,
she was pressuring him to get married. A date
was set and the local hotel was selected by
Leola to be the place of their marriage ceremony
and reception.

As the event took place Leola, Leon, and
Josh the photographer were very enthusiastic
about taking one photograph after another.
Leola, who had earned in Armand’s quiet
thinking the title of “Ice Queen”, was at this
point so warm and delightful that Armand
swallowed his doubts about her and went on
with the reassuring events of the occasion.
Armand’s mother, Juliana, impulsively took her
mother’s ring off her own hand and gave it to
Armand so that he could give it to Leola.

Leola was visibly taken aback, but she
allowed Armand to put the ring on her finger.
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Philip Johnston, who had been Armand’s
roommate for all his years at Yale, was his best
man. All seemed to be well, in fact better than
Armand thought possible and then, suddenly it
was all over. Leon and the photographer left the
room to pack the car and Leola disappeared in
the ladies room. After what seemed like a long
lapse of time, Philip went out to see if he could
assist the men in packing the car. And Juliana
sent one of t